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1. Name of Property

historic name _Amos Evans House

other names/site number _Koppenhaver House, Evans-Bowker House

2. Location

street & number _S501 East Main Street NE] not for publication
city or town _Marlton, Evesham Township O vicinity

034
state New Jersey code NI ___ county Burlington code00S___ zip code 08053

3._State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended, | hereby certify that this nomination
O request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the Nationa! Register of
Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the property
meets (] does not meet the Najonal Register criteria. | recommend that this property be considered significant

statewide . [ see continuation sheet for additional comments.)

A/zg/ 9/

Signature df dedifying official/Title * ! Date
Ass¥stant Commissioner for Natural & Historic Resources/DSHPO

Statff offederal agency and bureau

)

In r}w/ opinion, the property (] meets [ does not meet the National Register criteria. (|:| See continuation sheet for additional
comments.)
Signature of certifying official/Title Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

4. National Park Service Certification
| hereby gertify that the property is: ' / Signature of the Keeper Date of Action

entered in the National Register. . /
Jdse 92/74

[ see continuation sheet. 1 v

[ determined eligible for the
National Register
[J see continuation sheet.
O determined not eligible for the
National Register.
03 removed from the Nationat
Register.

O other, (explain:)




Name of Property

Burlington County, NJ
County and State

5. Classification

Owﬁership of Property Category of Property
(Check a:nany,boxes as apply) (Check only one box)
X] private K building(s)
OJ pubiic-local O district
O public-State [ site
J public-Federal O structure
[ object

Name of related multiple property listing
(Enter “N/A” if property is not part of a multiple property listing.)

Historic Resources of Evesham Township

Number of Resources within Property
(Do not include previously listed resources in the count.)

Contributing Noncontributing
2 buildings
sites
1 structures
objects
3 0 Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed
in the National Register

N/A

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

DOMESTIC/single dwelling

Current Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

DOMESTIC/single dwelling

7. Description

Architectural Classification
(Enter categories from instructions)

COLONIAL/Georgian

EARLY REPUBLIC/Federal

Narrative Description

Materials
(Enter categories from instructions)

foundation STONE
walls BRICK, WOOD: Weatherboard, METAL: Aluminum

roof WOOD

other

(Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)



Amos Evans House
Name of Property

County and State

8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria
(Mark “x” in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property
for Natioral Register listing.)

(0 A Property is associated with events that have made
a significant contribution to the broad patterns of
our history.

00 B Property is associated with the lives of persons
significant in our past.

X1 C Property embodies the distinctive characteristics
of a type, period, or method of construction or
represents the work of a master, or possesses
high artistic values, or represents a significant and
distinguishable entity whose components lack
individual distinction.

(] D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield,
information important in prehistory or- history.

Criteria Considerations
(Mark “x” in all the boxes that apply.)

Property is:  N/A

(] A owned by a religious institution or used for
religious purposes.

[0 B removed from its original location.

[J C a birthplace or grave.

(0 D a cemetery.

O E a reconstructed building, object, or structure.
0 F a commemorative property.

O G less than 50 years of age or achieved significance
within the past 50 years.

Narrative Statement of Significance

(Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)

"Areas of Significance
(Enter categories from instructions)

ARCHITECTURE

Period of Significance
1785 - ¢.1840

Significant Dates
1785

¢.1800
c.1840

Significant Person
{Complete if Criterion B is marked above)

N/A

Cultural Affiliation
N/A

Architect/Builder

Unknown

9. Major Bibliographical References

Bibilography

(Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets.)

Previous documentation on file (NPS): N/A

0O preliminary determination of individual listing (36
CFR 67) has been requested

[ previously listed in the National Register

[0 previously determined eligible by the National
Register

[J designated a National Historic Landmark

O recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey
#

[ recorded by Historic American Engineering
Record #

Primary location of additional data:

[0 State Historic Preservation Office
[J Other State agency
C] Federal agency
X Local government
O University
(1 Other
Name of repository:

Evesham Township’s Historic Preservation Commission




Amos Evans House
Name of Property

Burlington County, NJ
County and State

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of Property 3.29 acres

UTM References
(Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet.)

1118l Isloislsi20l buhulz6o0l

Zone Easting Northing

2|!ll|LILlJIl|Il(I|

Verbal Boundary Description
{Describe the boundaries of the property on a continuation sheet.)

Boundary Justification
(Explain why the boundaries were selected on a continuation sheet.)

Moorestown, NJ Quad

3‘1‘[’1]1¢|||‘|||1|

Zone Easting Northing

4Il|lJl||!ILLIl|III

[ see continuation sheet

11. Form Prepared By

nameftitle Margaret Westfield, Architect; Rebecca Hunt, Preservation Specialist

organization Westfield Architects & Preservation Consultants date January 1994

street & number 425 White Horse Pike

telephone _(609) 547-0465

city or town _Haddon Heights

state __INJ zip code _08035

Additional Documentation

Submit the following items with the completed form:
Continuation Sheets

Maps

A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property’s location.

A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.

Photographs

Representative black and white photographs of the property.

_Additional items
(Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items)

Property Owner A

(Complete this item at the request of SHPO or FPO.)

name _ Edna Koppenhaver

street & number 201 East Main Street

telephone (609) 983-0787

state _NJ zip code 08053

city or town Marlton

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places o nominate
properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is required to obtain
a benefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470 et seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18.1 hours per response including time for reviewing
instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect
of this form to the Chief, Administrative Services Division, National Park Service, P.O. Box 37127, Washington, DC 20013-7127; and the Office of
Management and Budget, Paperwork Reductions Projects (1024-0018), Washington, DC 20503.
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NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION

The Amos Evans House, built in three primary phases between 1785 and circa 1840, is located on a
3.29 acre lot on East Main Street, in Marlton, Evesham Township, Burlington County, New Jersey. The
earliest surviving structure is the main block of the brick section which was constructed in 1785 as
indicated by glazed headers that form this date in the west gable-end wall. (Photograph #7) Oral
tradition indicates that there was a circa 1740 house on this site, but none of it survives as part of the
existing house. Circa 1800, a frame kitchen section, approximately 17 by 19 feet, was added to the
west wall of the approximately 27 by 19 feet original brick building. Circa 1840, Amos Evens enlarged
the brick section by adding a 7 feet 2 inch brick extension to the east wall. He also added transitional
Greek Revival and Federal details such as window trim and sash and the four-column front porch. By
the end of the nineteenth century, a flat-roofed two-story frame section had been added to the west
wall of the earlier frame section. All of these additions are visually linked together with the 1785
house by their consistent width. Besides some alterations in 1978, which involved remodeling of the
center frame section and the addition of a one-story frame section, approximately 10 by 19 feet, the
house has retained an unusual abundance of its historic architectural fabric.

The two-story, five-bay brick section, with the 1785 original building and the circa 1840 addition, is
approximately 34 feet across the front by 19 feet deep. The north and south elevations of the original
brick building are constructed in a Flemish bond brick pattern with glazed headers. The stone
foundation under the entire brick section is topped by several courses of brick at grade level. This
foundation is punctuated by a cellar window on the east ends of the north and south facades and a
bulkhead entrance near the center of the south facade. When the eastern bay of this section was built
circa 1840, the entire brick building was stuccoed and scored in an ashlar pattern. The north (front)
elevation of the brick section has a circa 1840 three bay porch with a three tiered cornice which is
supported by four columns. (Photograph #2) The wood floor of this porch is reached by two wooden
steps and is centered on the front door, which is located in the center western bay. The circa 1840
four-panel front door is flanked by a twelve-over-eight sash window to the west and a six-over-six
sash window to the east. The additional first floor window near the east corner has six-over-six sash,
and the four symmetrical windows on the second floor have nine-over-six sash. All of the windows
on the north elevation of the brick section have paneled shutters and cast-iron shutterdogs.

The east gable-end wall is covered with modern stucco that has spalled in large sheets. Near the peak,
there are two four-over-four sash windows on either side of the chimney flue. There are no openings
on the first or second floors of this elevation. (Photograph #3)

The south (rear) elevation of the brick section is fenestrated with three windows on the first and
second floors. (Photograph #3) The two east windows on the first floor and the west window on the
second floor have twelve-over-eight sash while, conversely, the west first floor window and the two
east windows on the second floor have nine-over-six sash. An original fielded six-panel door is
located in the center east bay. (Photograph #4) This doorway and the window to its west also have

original pegged frames and early molded trim.

The west gable-end wall of the brick section is obscured from the exterior by the two-story frame
addition but in the attic of this addition, the glazed headers arranged to delineate the construction
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date of 1785 have been uncovered under several layers of plaster. (Photograph #7) Below these
numbers, there is a beltcourse of glazed headers, but no initials of the original owners were inscribed
above the numbers. This lack of letters above the date makes the Amos Evans House unique among

the patterned brick houses found in Marlton.

The middle section, which is of frame construction with brick nogging, abuts the west wall of the
brick section. Many similar details from the brick section are repeated in this middle section
including similar roof and floor levels, a stone foundation topped by several courses of brick which
are visible above grade, a box cornice, a wood shingle roof, and two four-over-four sash windows near
the peak of the gable-end that flank the flue of a brick chimney. The original frame construction with
brick nogging and wood clapboards is intact below modern aluminum siding. On the north (front)
facade of the middle section there are two windows per floor which each have six-over-six sash and
louvered shutters. Originally, there was a door centered between the first floor windows, but it was
closed in 1978 to accommodate a new kitchen layout. The south elevation of the middle section has a
center door and one six-over-six sash window on each floor, aligned near the west corner. Also on the
south elevation, there is a one-story screened-in porch that extends from the west side of the door in
the middle section to the east side of the door in the original brick section.

The modern one-story, gable-roofed western addition abuts the middle section and shares many
similar details such as wood roofing shingles, siding, and multi-light windows. (Photograph #2) The
west section has a small crawl space that covers the location of an early bake oven. Prior to 1978,
there was a two-story flat roofed section with an exterior door on the west elevation in this location.
There are currently no exterior doors in this section but there is a six-over-six sash window on each
elevation in addition to a pair of six-over-six sash windows on the west gable-end. Similar to the
middle section, all of the windows on the west section have louvered shutters.

Although most of the original exterior fabric has been retained, much of the significance of the Amos
Evans House lies in its extant original interior details. The brick section has retained its original doors,
strap hinges, H-L hinges, latches, and beaded board partitions that divide the first floor into a hall
and parlor plan and the second floor into a narrow center hall with two flanking bedchambers. The
cellar of the brick section is a large open storage space with a brick floor, whitewashed walls, a brick
corbel for the parlor fireplace, and original vertically-sawn first floor joists. Evidence in the framing
and foundation walls indicates the original extent of the east end wall and a corner fireplace
configuration in the northeast corner, both of which were removed as part of the circa 1840
extension. On the first floor of the brick section, the two exterior doors lead to the original “hall” that
now functions as the dining room. The original fielded six-panel exterior door and pegged frame in
the west gable-end have also been retained in this room. The large east room is characterized by
transitional Federal and Greek Revival window sash and frame and a simple fireplace on the east wall.
The original stairs from the first floor to the second floor are located in the southeast corner of the
dining room. Although the top section of the stairs have been extended to the north to reduce the
original steep angle, the original door (complete with spring latch) on the first floor, and lower
winder section of the stairs have been retained and are in good condition. (Photograph #5) The
original beaded board partitions on either side of the stairwell continue on the second floor to the
north wall where they terminate on either side of the window above the front door. Sections of
original peg boards still exist in the northern half of this narrow hall as well as on the east side of the
first floor partition. There is an original fielded panel door centered in each partition that leads to the
two flanking bedrooms. The east bedroom was clearly originally the best bedchamber. Many of its
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eighteenth-century details survive, including a fielded panel closet wall in the southwest corner.
(Photograph #6) The ceiling is currently plastered but the beaded second floor joists that were
originally exposed are visible in this closet. Along the east wall, there are two fielded panel doors
enclosing two closets. In the smaller, west bedroom, the original door leading to the original attic
steps is also intact with original hardware. In the attic of the brick section, the east extension is
distinguishable beyond the original floorboards and numbered rafters, which begin with number “I”
on the east end of the 1785 section and continue west.

In the middle section, the cellar is very similar to that under the brick section with such details as a
brick floor and stone foundation walls topped by several courses of brick at grade level. In the
northeast corner, the middle section’s foundation abuts the brick section’s foundation which
indicates that the middle section was constructed after the brick section. Many of the first floor joists
in the middle section were extensively damaged by termites and have been replaced with new wood
joists. Several original joists have also survived in this section. The first floor of the middle section has
retained its original function as a one room kitchen with a cooking fireplace centered on the west
wall and a stairwell in the southeast corner. The second floor of this frame section was originally
divided into an east room and a west room with two stairs in the larger east room (one in the
southeast corner leading down to the first floor and one in the northwest corner leading up to the
attic). This plan, including the stairs, still exists except the north half of the east room is currently
enclosed as a modern bathroom and there is a cedar closet in the southeast corner. The attic of the
middle section is an open space finished with wood floorboards and plaster walls.

The small one-story west section is divided into a small bathroom in the northwest corner and large
closets along the east interior wall. This section has modern flooring and paneled walls.

The Amos Evans House has, thus, retained a large degree of exterior character and an unusual amount
of interior integrity. Original eighteenth-century hardware, paneled and batten doors, beaded board
partitions, and stairs have survived and still delineate the original floor plans. The original parlor and
west bedchamber fireplaces are the only significant elements that are missing. Modern conveniences
have been respectfully introduced and generally restricted to minimally intrusive or modern locations.

The Amos Evans House is centered laterally on the 3.29 acre lot, set back approximately 120 feet from
Main Street, and angled slightly towards the northeast. (Photograph #1) The unpaved driveway is
located to the west of the house. There are grass fields on either side of the house and woods behind
the rear property line. Of the numerous frame barns and outbuildings that once occupied the
property, only one small frame shed survives, 60 feet from the southwest corner of the house near the
current south property line. This approximately 18 by 21 feet unpainted nineteenth-century shed has
two pairs of doors covering the north facade, clapboards on the other walls, and a corrugated metal
roof. (Photograph #8) Four and a half feet behind the rear screened-in porch, there is an old windmill
which is believed to be the only surviving windmill in Evesham Township. (Photograph #3) This
windmill, which is approximately eighty year old, once pumped water through underground pipes to
a cistern in the barn. Also near the porch, there are two cast-iron pumps and a wooden water trough.
Several trees of varying type and age are arranged along the road, between the front lawn and the east
field, and clustered in the southeast corner. Limited plantings surround the north, east, and south

walls of the house.
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NARRATIVE STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Amos Evans House, built in 1785, is historically significant within the Multiple Property
Submission’s historic context of domestic architecture in Evesham Township as a structure that has
retained a large degree of original late eighteenth-century details. This building is one of the few
surviving brick farmhouses with glazed headers which distinguish the Flemish bond facades and mark
the construction date on the gable end — the building type that is considered to be Evesham'’s most
significant and most threatened.! This house has retained numerous original interior details which
are rare survivors. The Amos Evans House is also important in relation to the early development of
Evesham because it was constructed and occupied by members of the prominent Evans/Evens family
who were the first settlers in the area. Furthermore, throughout its 208-year existence, the house has
only been owned by two families — the Evans/Evenses and the Bowkers.

According to Evans/Evens famlly tradition, the first house on this site was constructed circa 1740 for
~ William Evans (1716-1761).2 William was the eldest son of Thomas Evans (1693-1783) and Esther
Haines Evans. Thomas Evans purchased 1,000 acres of land in 1701 from Margaret Cook of
Philadelphia (and by separate deed from Indian King Himeson of the local Lenni Lenape tribe).
Thomas divided this original tract among his four sons (William, Isaac, Jacob, and Nathan), and it is
from this 1,000-acre lot that the numerous Evans/Evens family tracts derive.

The surviving house on this site is believed to have been built in 1785 for Enoch Evans (1743-1818),
the son of William and Sarah Roberts Evans.? (This construction date is the same year that Enoch’s
neighboring cousins, Thomas and Mary Evens, built a similar house just over one-half mile away.)
Enoch married Mary Wilcox in 1769. By 1773, they had five children (Joseph, John, Lydia, Joel, and
Thomas). Mary Wilcox Evans died in 1785 and Enoch did not marry his second wife, Elizabeth
Haines, until 1787. Some of the numerous architectural details that have survived from the original
1785 house include pegged window and door frames, fielded panel and board and batten doors,
wrought iron hardware, window sash, and beaded joists. Furthermore, in this house, intact original
beaded board partitions, complete with peg boards, exist on both the first and second floors in the
original floor plan. Circa 1800, a kitchen frame section with brick nogging was added to the west end
of the original house. This kitchen addition has been integrated into later additions but it retains its
original one-room plan on the first floor and numerous details.

In 1839, Amos Evans (1815-1892) inherited the house and farm from his father Jacob (d.1839)* and
lived there for over thirty years. Amos added a 7 feet 2 inch brick extension on the east end of the
original 1785 house and made some changes circa 1840 to upgrade the house in a transitional style
which employed both Federal and Greek Revival details. These improvements, such as the ashlar
scored stucco and four-column front porch, survive today and are important local examples of this
style on a vernacular farmhouse. Amos and his wife Rachel Kaighn Evans had five children (Hannah,

Elizabeth, Joseph, Mary, and Abigail).

Williamsl Evans (d.1912), the husband of Amos and Rachel’s daughter Elizabeth, purchased the farm
in 1893.> William succeeded his prominent uncle Ezra Evans (1800-1879) as secretary and treasurer of
the Marlton turnplke, and he was also director of the First National Bank of Camden, NJ After
Williams’ death in 1912, the property was purchased by George L. Bowker (1856-1944), the son of Eli
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and Maribeth Bowker.” George Bowker, a farmer from Tabernacle, New Jersey, was already well
acquainted with the farm by this time since he and his family had worked there since 1892.%

George Bowker and his wife Maggie Middleton Bowker (d.1935) raised three children in the Amos
Evans House: Albert G. (1888-1924), Carrie M. (1891-1939), and Edna (1904-) who was born in the
second floor west bedroom of the brick section. During George Bowker’s ownership, few changes were
made to the original brick section and west frame addition; thus, most of the eighteenth and
nineteenth-century details have survived intact. In 1944, the youngest daughter Edna and her
husband Blair E. Koppenhaver (1911-1974), an automobile salesman, inherited the property from the
estate of George Bowker. Edna Koppenhaver still lives in the house today, representing over 100 years

of Bowker family ownership and occupancy.’

There are two additional contributing structures on the property: a nineteenth-century frame shed
and an approximately eighty year old windmill near the back of the Amos Evans House. The
unpainted clapboard-sheathed shed is the only survivor of the numerous frame barns and
outbuildings that were once found on the property. The windmill, which originally pumped water

from a well to a large cistern in the barn, is said to be the only surviving windmill in Evesham
township. Two cast-iron water pumps and a wooden trough have also survived near the rear porch.

Endnotes

1. Actroterion, Cultural Resources Survey of Evesham Township, Report Prepared for the Township of
Evesham (Morristown, NJ: September, 1985), p.vi.

2. William H. Jr. and Mary Evans, Interview by Rebecca Hunt, December 13, 1993.

3. William H. Jr. an Mary Evans, Interview.

4. Burlington County Recorder of Deeds, Mt. Holly, NJ, Recited in Deed Book No.30S5, pp.394-6.
5. Burlington County Recorder of Deeds, Mt. Holly, NJ, Deed Book No.30S, pp.394-6.

6. Major E.M. Woodword, History of Burlington County New Jersey (Philadelphia: Everts & Peck, 1883;
Reprint, Burlington County Historical Society, 1980), p.325.

7. Burlington County Recorder of Deeds, Mount Holly, NJ, Deed Book No.478, pp.249-50.

8. Edna Bowker Koppenhaver, Interview by Rebecca Hunt and Margaret Westfield, December 6, 1993.

9. Edna Bowker Koppenhaver, Interview.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The house and associated frame shed and windmill occupy a portion of Block 29, Lot 1A on the Tax
Map of Evesham Township. The nominated site occupies approximately 3.29 acres.

BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION

The boundary includes 3.29 acres of the original farmstead, including the 1785 farmhouse,
contributing shed, and adjacent fields that have historically been part of the Amos Evans House and

maintain historical integrity.
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PHOTOGRAPHS

The following is the same for all photographs:

1. Amos Evans House
2.  Burlington County, New Jersey
3. Rebecca Hunt, Photographer
4. December, 1993
5. Negatives held by Margaret Westfield, R.A.
Westfield Architects & Preservation Consultants
425 White Horse Pike
Haddon Heights, NJ 08035
(609) 547-0465
List of Photographs:
6. View of Amos Evans House site, looking southeast.
7. Photograph 1 of 8
6. North (front) facade.
7. Photograph 2 of 8
6. South and east elevations and windmill.
7.  Photograph 3 of 8
6. Detail of original front door and adjoining window on south facade.
7. Photograph 4 of 8
6. Interior view of dining room (original hall), looking east.
7. Photograph S of 8
6. Interior view of second floor east bedroom, looking southwest.
7.  Photograph 6 of 8
6. View of uncovered construction date in glazed headers on the west brick gable-end, view looking
east from the attic of the frame addition.
7. Photograph 7 of 8
6. Frame shed, looking southwest.
7.  Photograph 8 of 8
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